
COMMISSION 
MEETING 

November 20, 2019 

10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Montgomery Regional Office 
Auditorium 

8787 Georgia Avenue 
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 



This page intentionally left blank.  



ITEM 1 

MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, November 20, 2019   
Montgomery Regional Office 

Auditorium 
8787 Georgia Avenue 

Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 

10:00 a.m. – 12 noon 
ACTION 

 Motion   Second 
1. Approval of Commission Agenda (10:00 a.m.) (+*) Page 1 

2. Approval of Commission Minutes (10:05 a.m.)
Open Session – October 16, 2019 (+*) Page 3 

3. General Announcements (10:05 a.m.)
a) National American Indian Heritage Month (Maryland American Indian Heritage Day Nov 29)
b) American Lung Cancer Awareness Month.  November 21 is also “The Great American Smoke Out” designated

by the American Cancer Society to encourage someone you know to quit smoking.
c) November 15 is “America Recycles Day”
d) November 23 is the Department of Parks and Recreation’s “Trot for Turkey” Day
e) Thanksgiving & Employee Appreciation Holidays (Nov 28-29)
f) Prince George’s Department of Parks and Recreation Annual Winter Festival of Lights

at Watkins Park (Nov 29-Jan 1).  Opening Ceremony and M-NCPPC Employee Reception
on Nov 25, 6-8 pm

g) Montgomery Parks Department Winter Garden Walk-Through Holiday Light Display
at Brookside Gardens (Nov 22 – Dec 31). M-NCPPC Employee Preview Night on Nov 26, 5-8 pm

h) Upcoming One-Commission Holiday Event December 6, 2019 at Newton White Mansion
i) Membership Positions Open on the 2020-21 Diversity Council – Apply to oed@mncppc.org by Nov 30.

4. Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only) (10:15 a.m.)
a) Executive Committee Meeting – Open Session – November 6, 2019 (+) Page 11 
b) Executive Committee Meeting – Closed Session – November 6, 2019 (++) 
c) ERS Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – September 3, 2019 (+) Page 17 

5. Action and Presentation Items (10:15 a.m.)
a) Resolution 19-20, Merit System Board Chairman

Reappointment – Tanya Upthegrove Coleman (King) (+*) Page 21 
b) Resolution 19-22, Actuarial Valuation Presentation with a Recommendation to Approve an

Employer Contribution for Pension Plan in the Amount of $22,312,947 (Rose) (+*) Page 25 
c) I-95/I-495 Managed Lanes Update – Revised ARDS Position

(MD - State Highway Admin/Rubin/Borden) (+) LD 

6. Officers’ Reports (11:45 a.m.)
a) Executive Director’s Report (For Information Only)

Late Evaluation Report, October 2019 (+)  Page 47 
b) Secretary Treasurer (For Information Only)

MFD Report (+)  Page 49 
Quarterly Investment Report (+) Page 85 

c) General Counsel (For Information Only)
Litigation Report (+)  Page 91 

1



Pursuant to Maryland General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, Section 3-305(b) (9),  
a closed session is proposed to consult with counsel for collective bargaining discussions and consider matters 
that relate to negotiation. 

7. Closed Session (11:50 a.m.)
a) Collective Bargaining Update (Bennett) (++) 

(+) Attachment  (++) Commissioners Only    (*) Vote  (H) Handout  (LD) Late Delivery   

2



Commission Meeting 
Open Session Minutes 

October 16, 2019 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission met at the Newton White Mansion Ballroom in 
Mitchellville, Maryland.  

PRESENT 

Prince George’s County Commissioners Montgomery County Commissioners 
Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Chair Casey Anderson, Vice-Chair  
Dorothy Bailey   Gerald Cichy 
William Doerner Natali Fani-Gonzalez  
Manuel Geraldo Tina Patterson (arrived 10:34 am) 

Partap Verma 

NOT PRESENT 
A. Shuanise Washington

Chair Hewlett convened the meeting at 10:11 a.m.  

ITEM 1  APPROVAL OF COMMISSION AGENDA 
Acting Executive Director Bennett requested to rename and reorder item 5b to “Approval of 
Resolution 19-19”, and to discuss after item 5c.  
ACTION:  Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the amended Commission agenda 

Seconded by Commissioner Bailey 
8 approved the motion (Commissioners Patterson and Washington not present) 

ITEM 2  APPROVAL OF COMMISSION MINUTES  
Open Session – September 18, 2918  
Closed Session – September 18, 2019 
ACTION:  Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the minutes 

   Seconded by Commissioner Bailey 
  8 approved the motion (Commissioners Patterson and Washington not present) 

ITEM 3  GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• Chair Hewlett acknowledged the closing of Hispanic Heritage Month, congratulating all

staff who participated in the many activities that were offered during the celebration.
• Chair Hewlett acknowledged the month of October for the following observances:

• Breast Cancer Awareness Month.  She added breast cancer is not limited to women.
She said everyone should do a self-examination, and if they feel anything strange, do
not hesitate to go to a physician;

• National AIDS Awareness Month;
• Hiring Employees with Disabilities Month, praising the agency on their focus and

success on this issue;
• National Domestic Violence Month.  She said the M-NPPC is hosting a Shatter the

Silence Gala on Friday, October 19 and a Shatter the Silence 5k Run/Walk on
Saturday, October 26. Proceeds from both will go to the Domestic Violence and

Item 2

3



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 2 
October 16, 2019 

Sexual Assault Center at the University of Maryland Capital Region Health. She 
advised anyone who has been subject to domestic violence to seek help, or if anyone 
knew of others subject to domestic violence to help them find support; 

• National Stop Bullying Month.  She added LGBTQ kids are particularly vulnerable.
Wear purple to show support;

• Italian American Heritage Month;
• German American Heritage Month;
• Polish American Heritage Month;
• National Pregnancy and Infancy Loss Awareness Month;

• Chair Hewlett shared the M-NPCPPC’s American Indian Festival is scheduled for
October 19 at Patuxent River Park; and

• Congratulated Commissioners Bailey and Doerner, who were unanimously reappointed
to the Prince George’s County Planning Board by County Executive Alsobrooks and the
County Council;

• Congratulated Commissioner Patterson for being recognized as one of the top 100
Minority Business Enterprises at the 38th annual Leaders and Legends awards ceremony
at MGM National Harbor;

• Shared Acting Prince George’s County Parks and Recreation Director Darin Conforti is
departing for Howard County and thanked him for his outstanding service to the agency.
She added congratulations to new Acting Parks and Recreation Director Debbie Tyner,
along with acting Deputies Wanda Ramos and Alvin McNeal, and congratulated Steven
Carter to a formal appointment as Deputy Director of Parks and Recreation;

• Wished Vice-Chair Anderson and Commissioner Fani-Gonzalez happy birthday; and
• Recognized long-term employees of the agency for their service and announced the

Commission Service Awards Ceremony will take place immediately after the
Commission meeting.

ITEM 4  COMMITTEE MINUTES/BOARD REPORTS (For Information Only) 
a) Executive Committee – Open Session October 8, 2019
b) Executive Committee – Closed Session October 8, 2019

ITEM 5 ACTION AND PRESENTATION ITEMS (taken out of order) 

a) Request to rename Maryland Soccerplex from Discovery Communications to Adventist
HealthCare (Tobin)
Item approved without discussion.
ACTION:  Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the Request

Seconded by Doerner 
8 approved the motion (Commissioners Patterson and Washington not present) 

c) Briefing on Purple Line Construction Draft Housing Action Plan (Sartori)
Montgomery Planning Director Wright briefed Commissioners on the draft of the Purple Line
Corridor Coalition (PLCC) Housing Action Plan for ideas and input.  Director Wright
stressed this was an important project that impacts both counties and added the PLCC has
done an excellent job collaborating and discussing the impact that the project will have on
businesses and residences.  She introduced Jason Sartori, Chief of Montgomery Planning’s
Department’s Functional Planning and Policy Division.

Mr. Sartori shared the PLCC is a public and private partnership of organizations and
agencies, that includes the M-NCPPC, which is studying the Purple Line Corridor to evaluate

4



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 3 
October 16, 2019 

its impacts on housing and small businesses along the Purple Line paying particular focus to 
ensure housing opportunities to people of all incomes, with a particular focus on low and 
middle income and transient residences.  He introduced the members of the PLCC Steering 
Committee, including Gerrit Knaap, Director, National Center for Smart Growth, University 
of Maryland; Jessica Sorrell, Program Director, Enterprise Community Partners; Stephanie 
Proestel, Deputy Director, Housing Initiative Partnership; and Chris Gillis, Director of 
Housing and Neighborhood Development, Montgomery Housing Partnership. 

Members of the steering committee presented the draft action plan to the Commission. Topics 
included the PLCC and Community Development Agreement; Shared Community 
Development Goals; Work of the PLCC Housing Action Team, including Crafting a Housing 
Action Plan, Stakeholder Outreach, and Draft Recommendations of the Housing Action Plan; 
and Input and Reactions.  The team described the wide range of organizations across both 
counties which provided crucial input, and shared housing statistics for the area which 
determined current conditions and provided insight on what to preserve and how to proceed.  
They concluded with outlining twelve recommendations that will produce more housing 
through rehabilitation or repair of existing homes; formalize the collaboration and 
communication between jurisdictions and across sectors; and improve PLCC engagement 
with members and organizations. 

Commissioner Doerner advised that the federal purchasing incentive plan guideline of 30 
percent of Average Monthly Income (AMI) should not be used in this area, noting the figure 
is extremely low for the Washington metropolitan region housing market and suggested 
aligning with a goal of 35 percent AMI.  He noted any mortgages over 30-45 percent is not 
approved for Federal lending except under special circumstances.  He suggested adjusting 
those limits in their recommendations.   

Commissioner Doerner also suggested if the PLCC is looking to get market participation with 
their statistics, they should see about getting data on actual rent per unit.  That data would be 
extremely valuable to market participants and suggested if PLCC could research and provide 
it, it would be a huge contribution.  It would be extremely helpful to cities and counties to 
hold PLCC-participating developers to a defined percentage of units at the affordable level. 
Agencies could then see how many units are actually within the affordable level.  Until they 
record on a unit by unit basis, there is no way to enforce that.  He has noticed on the local 
level, cities do not always know how to offer housing tax abatements.  They do not know that 
they are walking away from a huge value in funding if they give up 5-10 years’ worth of real 
estate taxes.  It is also beneficial to the developer, but it is not typically what cities and 
developers take advantage of when trying to create affordable housing. PLCC should help 
cities walk through how to ask for affordable housing and tax abatement and examine what 
goes on in other parts of the country.   

Commissioner Doerner asked if the PLCC has any investors lined up to take advantage of the 
designated Opportunity Zones. That data should be collected. He said knowing who was 
coming into the Opportunity Zones, and whether they would include affordable or equitable 
housing was important.  Whether they defer capital gains tax or housing tax abatements 
would be attractive to businesses.  Examining it could bring people to the table and would 
make a good case study to determine what federal policies are effective.  Finally, he 
encouraged the PLCC to examine the housing density around the study area and consider 
density bonuses to encourage people live within a walking distance to a metro station. 

5



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 4 
October 16, 2019 

Commissioner Geraldo asked who would directly benefit from the proposed tax abatement. 
Mr. Gillis replied while the Montgomery County Department of Housing and Community 
Affairs would still want to preserve their ability to negotiate, but they understand the need to 
provide a level of certainty to developers.  It depends on the level of affordability, but it does 
seem they have gotten away from full tax abatements.  Mr. Gillis said the county has the 
capacity to do more. There is an upcoming county council briefing in which it could be 
handled administratively or legislatively. They are in ongoing conversations about the issue. 

Commissioner Geraldo suggested allowing homeowners who have distressed property to take 
a tax abatement for renovating, similar to what is being done in north New Jersey and other 
cities in the northeast United States. Ms. Sorrell replied the state does offer such a program, 
but it has a maximum income cap and is geared toward seniors.  She also said homeowners 
can also take advantage of the Homestead Credit.  Commissioner Geraldo encouraged the 
opportunity for individuals to develop a distressed property.  Mr. Gillis replied the way it is 
currently structured in Montgomery County is diluting the housing trust fund, because the 
funds are being used to cover the taxes. He added the county recognized the issue and said 
they will address it. 

Commissioner Geraldo noted he did not see any financial institutions among the agencies 
participating in the PLCC.  He said a financial institution could play a critical role for a 
homeowner who wants to get a loan to renovate their property   Ms. Proestel replied the 
PLCC is assembling a capital advisement group that has not yet been launched but indicated 
there has been preliminary interest. 

Commissioner Geraldo asked what types of affordable housing stock is the PLCC 
considering, adding 2-3 family homes have been successful in the northeast.  They provide a 
good density and also allows home ownership.  Resident owners could rent out two homes 
and live in one. The model would provide substantial private development by homeowners.   
Commissioner Doerner noted he saw this Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) model was part of 
the plan in Montgomery County, but not in Prince George’s County. He added 3 housing unit 
ADUs would not be economically feasible but suggested 2 or 4-unit ADUs would be.  Mr. 
Knaap agreed they had collected much information from Montgomery County, including 
income and rents per unit, and said he would love for PLCC to have that data from Prince 
George’s.  Chair Hewlett said the M-NCPPC can help with the Prince George’s side.  Lisa 
Govoni, researcher for Montgomery County Planning said the department is working with the 
Prince George’s Planning Department on a unit by unit breakdown, to collect lease and rent 
data, whether it’s subsidized, etc. Mr. Knaap wished to recognize the PLCC’s success has 
been on account of the resources and support they have been getting from the agency. 

Commissioner Cichy asked if the objective of the public agency in some recent Transit-
Oriented Development (TOD) projects (e.g., Strathmore, West Hyattsville, New Carrollton) 
was optimizing the return or providing affordable housing.  He asked if the land was 
purchased by the State, is there surplus property that could be used for affordable housing.  
He also asked whether local jurisdictions get some of the land acquired by the Purple Line 
project for affordable housing and asked who owns the land acquired for the Purple Line.  
Deputy Director Figueredo and Director Wright replied land has been acquired which will not 
be needed when the project is complete.  Director Wright added the previous owner also has a 
right of first refusal, if the owner wishes to reclaim the property. The agency has been 
informed that some owners have indicated they would like the property back if not used.  
Commissioner Cichy stated it may serve the joint interest of the community to change the 
legislation to use the land for affordable housing. 

6



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 5 
October 16, 2019 

Commissioner Fani-Gonzalez said it is gratifying to see this project under way after so many 
years and supported the ongoing need for good communication between the counties.  She 
noted she did not see the Office of Councilmember Hucker referenced.  Councilmember 
Hucker’s district covers much of the Purple Line’s area and he has been very active and 
interested in the Purple Line development. She advised the PLCC to reach out to him more.  
Mr. Knaap replied the PLCC is assembling a Purple Line caucus of elected officials.  They 
have had conversations which have included the councilmember, and the PLCC will increase 
their efforts to include him in the caucus.  Commissioner Fani-Gonzalez also suggested the 
PLCC also make certain their recommendations are given to the Planning Board for 
Subdivision Staging Policy (SSP).   

Commissioner Cichy asked about acquired property that included a bus terminal in Langley 
Park. He said it was confusing who was going to buy it and said if the PLCC is looking to 
develop that community, it should look into whether the property can be transferred to an 
adjacent property.  Zoning adjustments could accommodate development potential aimed at 
affordable housing. 

Chair Hewlett said the agency can help facilitate communicating with council members 
offices by reaching out to the Deputy Chief Administrative Officer of the Department of 
Housing and Community Development. Enhanced communication would be better.  She 
added the Department of Parks and Recreation and the Prince George’s County government 
have Transforming Neighborhoods Initiative (TNI) areas in which they are working closely 
with the City of Langley Park and Casa de Maryland as well.  She said the Commission will 
work to ensure greater communication.  She added it is a wonderfully diverse area and 
stressed the importance of the upcoming 2020 census, saying the area cannot be 
undercounted, since the census data helps fund transportation, schools and other services.   

Commissioner Patterson asked the PLCC to contact her regarding which policy they are 
following.  Ms. Sorrell noted they are not currently following a specific policy on a coalition 
level but noted they would welcome Commissioner Patterson’s input.  Commissioner 
Patterson indicated she would provide her contact information.   

Commissioner Doerner noted a need for greater racial diversity among the PLCC steering 
committee and suggested it might be helpful if the committee were more diverse when 
speaking to other groups.   

b) Approval of Resolution 19-19 / Proposed Adjustments to Stipends for Hard-to-Fill Positions
(Harvin)
Acting Corporate Policy and Management Operations Director Tracey Harvin asked
Commissioners to approve Resolution 19-19, updating recruitment incentives to fill positions
designated as “hard to fill”.  She explained the agency has updated the implementing
procedures, and staff are now asking Commissioners to approve the new incentive amounts.
The incentive program contains two tools:  The first provides an incentive to current
employees to who refer candidates successfully hired into designated hard-to-fill positions.  A
position may be designated as hard-to-fill by Department Heads and the Executive Director if
prior attempts to fill the position have not succeeded.  In 2006, the Commission voted by
Resolution to make the referral incentive $750.  Based on research and management input,
the proposed new Resolution increases the incentive to $1,000.

7



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 6 
October 16, 2019 

The second incentive applies to the candidate. Acting Director Harvin said this tool, a signing 
bonus, may be used in order to attract candidates to hard-to-fill positions.  This tool would be 
used if the agency cannot match a qualified candidate’s salary requirements.  In 2006, the 
Commission approved a signing bonus of $3,000, which management indicated was not 
sufficient.  Other public employers have greater flexibility.  The Resolution proposes a tiered 
bonus of up to $10,000.  The exact figure of the bonus would be based on the salary of the 
position, and eligible only for positions designated as hard to fill.   

Chair Hewlett said to prevent the spurious use of this program, these incentives would require 
the support of both Department Head and Executive Director, noting Department Heads are 
familiar with their budgets, and would not give these bonuses indiscriminately. She also said 
with the tiered guidelines in place, the signing bonus amounts would not be random.  Acting 
Director Harvin added the hired candidate would have to stay with the agency for 2 years or 
forfeit a pro-rated amount of the signing bonus if they terminated prior to that. Acting 
Director Harvin added there is a form that the referring employee must complete.  Employees 
who are Division Chiefs or above are not eligible, nor are employees in the Recruitment or 
Classification and Compensation offices or hiring managers. 

Commission Bailey asked if the agency has a list of hard to fill positions.  Acting Director 
Harvin replied the agency has not yet developed one but would be building the list in the 
future.  Once the position has been designated as a hard to fill, it will be noted as such next 
time that it is advertised.  Chair Hewlett asked once a position is designated as hard to fill, 
will it always be designated that way.  Acting Director Harvin replied it would not, adding 
the designation would reflect market conditions. Commissioner Geraldo asked how the 
agency would go about collecting the signing bonus if a person terminates early.  Acting 
Executive Director Bennett replied the employee would sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding where he/she agrees to reimburse the agency.  She noted the agency has never 
had to use the reimbursement requirement as individuals have remained with the agency for 
at least the required two years. Acting Director Harvin added the program is not frequently 
used, and she noted the figure may not be enough to sway someone to take a new position.  
She added tree climbers and the more technical positions are currently the most difficult to 
fill. 

Commissioner Patterson said she thought the increased incentives are a great idea.  She asked 
after the tax implications of the signing bonus and suggested the MOU indicate it is up to the 
individual to seek tax advice.  Acting Executive Director Bennett agreed it would be a good 
idea to include that language in the procedures.  The Policy team will add this language. 

ACTION:  Motion of Commissioner Geraldo to approve the Resolution and Amendments 
Seconded by Commissioner Doerner 
9 approved the motion 

ITEM 6 OFFICERS’ REPORTS 
a) Executive Director’s Report (For information only)

Employee Evaluations Not Completed by Due Date (August 2019)

b) Secretary Treasurer (For information only).
115 Trust Annual Report

c) General Counsel (For information only)
Litigation Report, August 2019

8



Commission Meeting Minutes – Open Session 7 
October 16, 2019 

General Counsel Gardner stated that attorney Debra Borden has been promoted to Deputy 
General Counsel, and congratulated her on the position, adding this is the first time the 
agency has had a Deputy General Counsel in several decades.   

General Counsel Gardner said he will soon be distributing to Commissioners an update memo 
regarding the I-95/I-495/I-270 Managed Lanes Project and said it is likely the team will 
return for an update at the next Commission meeting. 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting ended at 11:34 a.m. 

_______________________________________       ___________________________________ 
James F. Adams, Administrative Specialist II      Anju A. Bennett, Acting Executive Director 

9



This page intentionally left blank.  

10



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
November 6, 2019 

On November 6, 2019, the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission’s Executive Committee 
met in the 4th floor conference room at 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Riverdale, Maryland. Present were Chair 
Elizabeth M. Hewlett and Acting Executive Director Anju Bennett. Vice Chair Casey Anderson was absent but 
sent his input on items to Acting Executive Director, indicated in the minutes.  Present were:   

Department Heads 
Andree Checkley, Director, Prince George’s County Planning (PGPL) 
Debra Borden, Deputy General Counsel, for General Counsel Adrian Gardner  
Mike Riley, Director, Montgomery County Parks (MCPK) 
Tanya Stern, Deputy Director, for Montgomery County Planning Director Gwen Wright (MCPL) 
Debbie Tyner, Acting Director, Prince George’s County Parks and Recreation (PGPR) 
Joseph Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer 

Presenters/Staff 
Michael Beckham, Policy Manager, CPMO 
Mazen Chilet, Chief Information Officer 
Tracey Harvin, Acting Chief, Corporate Policy and Management Operations (CPMO) 
John Kroll, Corporate Budget Director 
Robert Kronenberg, Deputy Director, Montgomery Planning 
William Spencer, Human Resources Director 

Acting Executive Director Bennett convened the meeting at 10:08 p.m. 
ITEM 1a – APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Discussion Acting Executive Director Bennett added Item 3e, Update on the EOB Feasibility Study 

for closed session. Chair Hewlett approved the amended agenda. 
ITEM 1b – APPROVAL OF COMMISION MEETING AGENDA for November 20, 2019 
Discussion Items to modify on the Commission Agenda: 

• Add Festival of Lights Walk-Through & Opening Ceremony for employees on
November 25, 6-8 p.m., Watkins Regional Park

• Add Trot for a Turkey, November 23, 6 p.m., Watkins Regional Park.
• Add the Montgomery Parks, Brookside Garden of Lights employee

walkthrough (Director Riley to provide date).
• Add Carol Rubin/Debra Borden as lead staff on Item 5c. Managed Lanes

Update
• Move Item 5d. Current Planning Project Updates item to December.
• There may be three bi-county bills to add to the General Counsel’s officer’s

report.
ITEM 1c – ROLLING AGENDA FOR UPCOMING COMMISSION MEETINGS 
Discussion Items to modify on the Rolling Agenda: 

• Move CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) from December to
January

• Move OPEB (Other Post-Employment Benefits) from January to December
• Move Diversity Council Annual Report to February
• Add CAPRA (Commission for Accreditation of Parks and Recreation Agencies)

update in January. Include timeline of deliverables and representative visits.
• Add policy items (e.g., budget amendments) to December.

Item 4a.

11



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION Page 2
November 6, 2019 

ITEM 2 – OCTOBER 8, 2019 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
ACTION October 8, 2019 Open Session. Chair Hewlett moved approval; Acting Executive 

Director Bennett seconded.  Vice-Chair Anderson approved through earlier review. 
Approved without comment.   

ITEM 3 – DISCUSSION/PRESENTATION ITEMS 
ITEM 3a – Proposed Amendments to Capital Asset Policy (Practice 3-14) (Harvin/Beckham) 
Discussion Corporate Policy and Management Operations (CPMO) Director Harvin asked for 

approval for amendments to Practice 3-15, the agency’s Capital Assets Policy. A capital 
asset is any asset with a value of at least $10,000 and useful lifespan of at least 1 year. 
This policy establishes standards for departments to account for, secure, and maintain 
capital assets. It also includes reporting requirements.  She introduced Policy Manager 
Michael Beckham. 

Mr. Beckham stated the proposed policy amendments were reviewed with and 
supported by Department Heads. He explained the amendments to the policy, as 
outlined in the packet. He reviewed the differences between a controlled asset and 
capital asset and how those items are addressed in the policy.  

Mr. Beckham shared Department Heads supported a recommendation made by 
Inspector General Kenney to prohibit the direct sale of surplus vehicles to employees. 
He noted Secretary-Treasurer Zimmerman recommended a blanket prohibition for 
employees, not only against the purchasing of vehicles, but purchasing any surplus 
items from the agency, to avoid any perceptions of potential conflicts of interest.  All 
surplus items which cannot be utilized by another agency operation, can be 
considered for sale through third party.  The Executive Committee agreed with the 
recommendation.  

Acting Director Harvin added employee would be in the same position as a member of 
the public.  The key issue is that the sale happens through a third party, and the 
employee is not permitted to bypass the process. 

Acting Executive Director Bennett requested a clarification to the policy on the 
reporting of losses. 

More specifically, she requested that the policy team clarify the Employee 
Responsibilities section and other relevant sections on reporting damaged assets. She 
stated: 

• Losses of capital and controlled assets must be reported to the Department
Head.

• Losses of capital assets must be reported to the Secretary-
Treasurer/Department of Finance and the Risk Management Office.

• If a controlled asset loss requires replacement as an insured loss, it must also
be reported to Risk Management.

• The OIG should not need to be involved whenever a car or asset is damaged,
as this would require every accidental damage to be reported. Any losses
involving potential fraud, waste, abuse (including theft) should be reported to
the Office of the Inspector General for appropriate action.

12



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION Page 3
November 6, 2019 

Action/Follow Up Acting Executive Director Bennett moved to approve the amendments with changes 
as discussed. Chair Hewlett seconded.  The motion was passed.  Acting Executive 
Director asked the team to proceed with the changes and ensure that copy of the 
amended policy is sent to the Commission for information purposes.    

ITEM 3b – Rescission of Practice 3-40, Preparing Time Cards (Harvin) 

Discussion Acting CPMO Director Harvin recommended this Practice be rescinded as it is 
outdated and is being replaced by updates to Administrative Procedures 99-04 which 
provides more detailed policy responsibilities.  Thus, any relevant sections of Practice 
3-40 are addressed in the Administrative Procedures. CPMO Director Harvin indicated
the Executive Director will authorize the Administrative Procedures following
rescission of Practice 3-40. Chair Hewlett and Acting Executive Director Bennett
agreed combining the policies made sense.  Chair Anderson, through earlier input,
supported the staff recommendation.

Action/Follow Up Chair Hewlett moved to rescind Practice 3-40; Acting Executive Director Bennett 
seconded. The motion was passed. 

ITEM 3c – Workforce Turnover (Harvin) 

Discussion Acting Executive Director Bennett provided background on the report which covered 
the agency’s turnover trends as they compared to other public employers, as well as 
regional and national trends.  She noted that Vice-Chair Anderson had asked for an 
analysis of turnover rates in the Planning and Parks Departments to understand 
potential areas of focus. She also shared that employee retention has been a priority 
of Chair Hewlett in that the agency remains cognizant of shifts in employment 
demographics, inclusion and retention policies.  Acting Executive Director Bennett 
explained the agency’s turnover has remained fairly stable and is below regional and 
national averages.  However, she felt additional focus was needed on areas such as 
agency-wide succession planning especially with projected eligibility for retirement 
and areas where additional outreach is needed in the coming years.  She said staff had 
a productive meeting identifying those needs with Department Heads and the report 
is being presented to the Executive Committee to ask for recommendation to take the 
report to the Commission.  

Acting CPMO Director Harvin presented a summary of the report, which described the 
agency’s workforce demographics and turnover statistics for the career workforce. 
The agency’s turnover rate compares favorably to state and national rates. Chair 
Hewlett asked how the agency compares to Montgomery and Prince George’s 
Counties.  Ms. Harvin replied the agency is comparable to Prince George’s County and 
Montgomery County’s fire and safety personnel, but noted no statistics were available 
for other areas in the county.  Director Riley said the National Parks and Recreation 
Association collects benchmarking data and suggested they might have information 
on Parks and Recreation agencies nationwide. Acting CPMO Director Harvin agreed to 
investigate that data further. 

Acting CPMO Director Harvin noted many employees in the administrative and 
professional series have been with the agency for a long time, indicating that 
employees tend to want to stay with the agency. Chair Hewlett noted that works in 
reverse, as well, since younger or shorter-term employees may leave if they sense 
there is no room for career growth because senior staff do not leave. Acting CPMO 
Director Harvin said that was clearly reflected in the Millennial demographic, noting 

13



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION Page 4
November 6, 2019 

while they make up only about 30% of the workforce, they account for 49% of the 
non-retirement separations.  

Acting Executive Director Bennett noted there were instances in the report that 
referred to “employees” and asked for it to be clarified to read “career employees” to 
delineate that the study is reporting career turnover only. 

Acting CPMO Director Harvin concluded the report by saying retirement is the primary 
driver of career employee separation. Consequently, the agency should take a closer 
look at succession planning. With so much expected retirement turnover, there will be 
a great loss of institutional knowledge and the agency should prepare individuals who 
are ready to take leadership roles. Acting Executive Director Bennett added at the last 
Department Heads’ meeting, Directors agreed upon the need to bring in a consultant 
to assist with the process, noting the agency needs to focus on diversity and to 
examine recruitment from both the outside and across departments.   

Acting Executive Director Bennett stated that Department Directors recently had a 
very good conversation on employee retention, noting that together they 
recommended a series of policy updates to support recruitment and retention.  
Directors also support bringing back an agency-wide leadership development 
program, mentoring and succession planning.  Some of these efforts were 
discontinued due to budget constraints but it is essential the agency restore these 
programs to prepare for significant retirements expected in the next five years. Chair 
Hewlett agreed saying this type of training is for everyone’s benefit. Department 
Directors also noted their support. 

Deputy General Counsel Borden suggested the consultant might help navigate 
succession planning efforts with open competition for positions. Acting Executive 
Director Bennett agreed, stating that that more robust supervisory training and an 
agency-wide Leadership Program which allows employees from all departments to get 
experience inside and outside their departments would benefit the agency and its 
employees.  

Deputy General Counsel Borden asked how the former leadership program was 
funded.  Acting Executive Director Bennett replied that prior to budget cuts, a training 
team existed in bi-county to design and implement the training. Departments also 
contributed to program costs when external consultants were utilized to deliver 
specialized training.  The current issue is that the Bi-county Departments do not have 
the staff to implement such a program and must rely on external consultants which 
may not be as cost effective for continuous training needs. Director Checkley 
suggested staff from each Department may be able to assist in training efforts. 
Executive Director Bennett supported this idea, adding the Departments would have 
valuable input in participation and design of training. Acting Executive Director 
Bennett asked Acting CPMO Director Havin to form the workgroup once the new 
Training Manager is hired for the Department of Human Resources and Management.  

Deputy Director Stern suggested an inventory on trainings departments are doing, 
suggesting they consider scaling up successful programs.  Acting Executive Director 
Bennett supported the suggestion stating that an updated inventory would be 
beneficial.  Department Directors participated in a training retreat in recent years, 
reviewed departmental programs at that time, and identified priorities that should be 
provided agency-wide by corporate teams, versus those which are better handled at 
the department level to address position-specific training.    

14



Executive Committee Meeting – OPEN SESSION Page 5
November 6, 2019 

Acting CPMO Director Harvin a noted some of the agency’s awards for being a 
preferred workplace and that its programs/policies help keep retention high. Acting 
CPMO Director Harvin was asked to include these details in the report that goes to the 
Commission. 

Chair Hewlett agreed the report should be updated with the suggestions shared by 
the Executive Committee and then presented to Commission.  The report should 
include county statistics, and information on the agency’s preferred workplace 
standing.    

ITEM 3d – Investment Report (Zimmerman) (information Item only) 

Handout not provided at the time of the meeting. 

Acting Executive Director Bennett moved the meeting to closed session at 10:55 a.m. to discuss item 3e. Open session 
resumed at 11:01 a.m. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 11:01 a.m. 

_______________________________________________  ______________________________________ 
James F. Adams, Administrative Program Specialist II   Anju A. Bennett, Acting Executive Director 

15



This page intentionally left blank.   

16



EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

REGULAR BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 3, 2019; 10:00 A.M. 

ERS/Merit Board Conference Room 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees' Retirement System Board of Trustees 

met in the ERS/Merit Board Conference Room at its office in Riverdale, Maryland on Tuesday, September 3, 2019 

and was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by CHAIRMAN HEWLETT. 

Board Members Present 

Elizabeth M. Hewlett, Board of Trustees Chairman, Prince George's County Commissioner 

Gerald R. Cichy, Board of Trustees Vice Chairman, Montgomery County Commissioner 

Anju Aggarwal Bennett, M-NCPPC Acting Executive Director, Ex-Officio 

Melissa D. Ford, Prince George's County Open Trustee 

Pamela F. Gogol, Montgomery County Public Member 

Amy Millar, MCGEO Represented Trustee 

Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Prince George's County Public Member 

Daniel Singh, Montgomery County Open Trustee 

Elaine Stookey, Bi-County Open Trustee 

Joseph C. Zimmerman, CPA, M-NCPPC Secretary-Treasurer, Ex-Officio 

Board Member Not Present 
Howard Brown, FOP Represented Trustee 

ERS Staff Present 

Andrea L. Rose, Administrator 

Heather D. Van Wagner, Senior Administrative Specialist 

Sheila Joynes, ERS Accounting Manager 

Presentations 

In at 10:03 a.m. 

In at 10:33 a.m. 

In at 10:12 a.m. 

Northern Trust - Ali Guttillo, Relationship Manager Corporate & Institutional Services, Patricia Somerville
Koulouris, Division Manager Corporate & Institutional Services, and Don Anderson, Relationship Manager Global 
Securities Lending 

Wilshire Associates - Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director and Martell McDuffy, Senior Analyst 

Others Present 
M-NCPPC Legal Department - William C. Dickerson, Principal Counsel

ITEM 1 APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the September 3, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda

B. Minutes of Open Session, July 9, 2019

C. Disbursements Granted Report - June and July 2019

CHAIRMAN HEWLETT revised the September 3, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda to 

include a closed session to consult with legal counsel as Item 6 on the Agenda and asked for a 

motion to approve. 

ACTION: MS. GOGOL made a motion, seconded by VICE CHAIRMAN CICHY 

to approve the revised September 3, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Agenda. The motion PASSED unanimously (7-0). (Motion #19-46) 

CHAIRMAN HEWLETT asked for a motion to approve Items B and C on the Consent Agenda. 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 MINUTES. AS APPROVED, 

AT THE NOVEMBER 5, 2019 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Item 4b

17



18



19



20



November 20, 2019 

TO: The Commission 

FROM: Anju A. Bennett, Acting Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Re-appointment of Tanya Upthegrove-Coleman as Chair of the 
Merit System Board December 1, 2019 – December 1, 2023 

The Commission first appointed Ms. Upthegrove-Coleman to fill a Merit System Board 
vacancy on December 1, 2008 as part of the Commission’s Resolution 08-17.  Her 
appointment was for a term of three (3) years effective December 1, 2008 through 
December 1, 2011. 

On November 16, 2011, the Commission approved Resolution 11-19, the reappointment 
was for a term of four years from December 1, 2011 to December 1, 2015. 

On October 21, 2015, the Commission approved by Resolution 15-19, the 
reappointment for a four-year term from December 1, 2015 through December 1, 2019. 

On September 18, 2019, the Commission appointed Ms. Upthegrove-Coleman to serve 
as the Chair of the Merit System Board beginning July 28, 2019 through the end of her 
current term after the resignation of the former Chair. 

In accordance with Chapter 200, Section 222 of the Merit System Rules and 
Regulations, I am recommending the reappointment of Ms. Upthegrove-Coleman to a  
four-year term as Chair of the Merit System Board effective December 1, 2019 through 
December 1, 2023.  All other terms and conditions of her contract remain the same. 

Item 5a

21



This page intentionally left blank.   

22



23



Tanya Upthegrove-Coleman 
is a Senior Human 
Resources professional 
within the legal industry. 
Ms. Upthegrove-
Coleman provides expertise 
in key HR capabilities 
including performance 
management, employee 
relations, organization 
development, recruiting, 
leadership and professional 
development. She focuses 
on supporting the business 
in coaching, mitigating risks 
and influencing business 
outcomes. 

Upthegrove-Coleman also 
serves as Adjunct Faculty at 
Prince George’s Community 
College and as President of 
TRU HR Solutions LLC, an HR consulting firm. She is a member of Society of 
Human Resource Management (SHRM); she was formerly on the Board of 
Directors of the Association of Legal Administrators Capital Chapter Foundation 
and is currently the Chair, Merit System Board for the Maryland-National Capital 
Park and Planning Commission. (M-NCPPC). 

Tanya earned a Bachelor or Arts degree from the University of Nebraska and a 
Master’s degree from The Ohio State University. She currently holds two 
professional human resources certifications, SHRM-CP and PHR and is currently 
enrolled at Cornell University, earning a certification in Strategic Human 
Resources Leadership. 

24



MEMORANDUM 

• 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
661 l Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100 
Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

Andrea L Rose 

Administrator 

(301)454-1415 -Telephone
(301)454-1413- Facsimile

http://ers.mncppc.org

TO: The Commission /
Elizabeth M. Hewlett J JAChainnan, Board of rstees

DATE: November 7, 2019
VIA:

FROM: 

Subject:

Andrea L. Rose � �- �ERS Administrator 
Resolution #19-22 - Recommendation to Approve an Employer Contribution in
the Amount o/$22,312,947 for Fiscal Year 2021 

RECOMMENDATION At its November 5, 2019 meeting, the Employees' Retirement System (ERS) Board of Trustees("Board") accepted the July 1, 2019 Actuarial Valuation presented by Cheiron. As a result, theBoard recommends the Commission approve Resolution #19-22 which adopts an employercontribution in the amount of $22,312,947 (13.93% of covered payroll) for fiscal year 2021. 
BACKGROUND In accordance with the ERS' Plan Document, Section 2.3(g), the Board shall recommend to theCommission the contributions to be made by the Commission under the provisions of the ERS. 
Each year the ERS has an independent actuarial valuation performed to determine the fundingrequirements for the ERS. The actuarial valuation is designed to measure the current and futurecost of retiree benefits based on employee demographics, assets and liabilities, plan provisions,and actuarial assumptions and methods. The actuary recommends an employer contribution toensure sufficient assets are available for future benefits.
A pension plan is well funded when it has enough money in reserve to meet all expected futureobligations to participants. The ERS' funding objective is to meet long-term benefit promisesthrough employee and employer contributions that remain approximately level as a percent ofmember payroll. The July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation indicated a funded ratio (based on theactuarial value of assets) of92.75%, which is down from 94.94% in 2018.
The July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation includes a change in the investment return assumption from6.90% to 6.85%, which is consistent with industry trends and was approved by the Board earlierthis year.

Item 5b

25



26



27



This page intentionally left blank.   

28



Pe
ns

io
n 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
as

 o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
9

Pr
es

en
te

d 
by

Ja
ne

t C
ra

nn
a,

 F
SA

, E
A,

 M
AA

A
Pa

tri
ck

 N
el

so
n,

 F
SA

, E
A,

 M
AA

A

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
l C

ap
ita

l P
ar

k 
an

d 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

29



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

Ag
en

da

•
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

As
se

ss
m

en
t o

f R
is

k

•
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

9 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

•
Pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

1

30



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9 2

1.
C

ol
le

ct
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
–

M
em

be
r d

at
a

–
Pl

an
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s
–

As
se

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
2.

Ap
pl

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
–

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

–
Ec

on
om

ic
3.

Pr
oj

ec
t a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 
be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
4.

D
et

er
m

in
e 

a 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 
be

ne
fit

s
5.

C
om

pa
re

 to
 a

ss
et

s
6.

C
al

cu
la

te
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
an

d  
em

pl
oy

ee
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

2

Th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
Pr

oc
es

s 

31



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

AS
O

P 
51

 –
M

at
er

ia
l R

is
ks

•
M

at
er

ia
l r

is
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d:
–

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

–
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 
to

 b
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d
–

Lo
ng

ev
ity

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 R

is
k 

–
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

to
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d

–
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
is

k 
–

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l  t
ha

t a
ct

ua
l 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill 

no
t a

de
qu

at
el

y 
fu

nd
 th

e 
Pl

an
–

Pl
an

 C
ha

ng
e 

R
is

k 
–

th
e 

po
te

nt
i a

l f
or

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

–
A

ss
um

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
R

is
k 

–
th

e 
po

te
nt

i a
l f

or
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 d
iff

er
en

t t
ha

n 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

3

32



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

Tr
en

ds

4

Su
pp

or
t r

at
io

 a
bo

ve
 b

ar
s 

is
 th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f i
na

ct
iv

es
 (R

et
ire

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Ve
st

ed
s)

 p
er

 a
ct

iv
e.

2,
05

2
2,

06
4

2,
07

0
2,

10
4

2,
07

3
2,

10
2

2,
14

4
2,

12
3

22
4

22
7

24
4

26
0

26
3

26
0

25
2

23
5

1,
17

6 
1,

23
5 

1,
27

2 
1,

32
4 

1,
39

6 
1,

46
1 

1,
53

2 
1,

64
5 

0.
0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
8

1.
0

1.
2

1.
4

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0

3,
50

0

4,
00

0

4,
50

0

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Inactive to Active Ratio

Count 

Va
lu

at
io

n
Ye

ar

Hi
st

or
ic

al
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
Co

un
ts

Ac
tiv

es
Te

rm
in

at
ed

 V
es

te
d

In
 P

ay
 S

ta
tu

s
Su

pp
or

t R
at

io

33



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

AS
O

P 
51

 –
Su

pp
or

t R
at

io

5

0.
00

0.
50

1.
00

1.
50

2.
00

2.
50

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Su
pp

or
t R

at
io

5t
h 

to
 2

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
25

th
 to

 5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
75

th
 to

 9
5t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

M
-N

CP
PC

Su
rv

ey
 D

at
a 

fro
m

 P
ub

lic
 P

la
ns

 D
at

ab
as

e 
as

 o
f 9

/2
4/

20
19

34



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

As
se

ts
 a

nd
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s

6

Fu
nd

ed
 s

ta
tu

s 
sh

ow
n 

ab
ov

e 
ba

rs
 is

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

di
vi

de
d 

by
 A

ct
ua

ria
l L

ia
bi

lit
y.

82
%

83
%

87
%

94
%

90
%

91
%

95
%

93
%

$0
.0

$0
.5

$1
.0

$1
.5

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Billions

Pe
ns

io
n 

Pl
an

 -
As

se
ts

 a
nd

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y
As

se
ts

-S
m

oo
th

ed
 (A

VA
)

As
se

ts
 -M

ar
ke

t (
M

VA
)

35



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

AS
O

P 
51

 –
D

is
co

un
t R

at
e

7

6.
00

%

6.
50

%

7.
00

%

7.
50

%

8.
00

%

8.
50

%

9.
00

%

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Di
sc

ou
nt

 R
at

e

5t
h 

to
 2

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
25

th
 to

 5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
75

th
 to

 9
5t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

M
-N

CP
PC

Su
rv

ey
 D

at
a 

fro
m

 P
ub

lic
 P

la
ns

 D
at

ab
as

e 
as

 o
f 9

/2
4/

20
19

36



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

AS
O

P 
51

 –
M

VA
 F

un
de

d 
R

at
io

8

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

14
0%

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

M
VA

 F
un

de
d 

Ra
tio

5t
h 

to
 2

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
25

th
 to

 5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h 

Pe
rc

en
til

e
75

th
 to

 9
5t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e

M
-N

CP
PC

Su
rv

ey
 D

at
a 

fro
m

 P
ub

lic
 P

la
ns

 D
at

ab
as

e 
as

 o
f 9

/2
4/

20
19

37



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

M
em

be
r C

ou
nt

s

9

M
em

be
r S

ta
tu

s
A

s 
of

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
8

A
s 

of
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

9
%

 C
ha

ng
e

Ac
tiv

e
2,

14
4 

2,
12

3 
-0

.9
8%

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 V

es
te

d
25

2 
23

5 
-6

.7
5%

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 N

on
-V

es
te

d
39

7 
42

6 
7.

30
%

R
et

ire
d,

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s,
 a

nd
 

D
is

ab
le

d
1,

53
2 

1,
64

5 
7.

38
%

To
ta

l
4,

32
5

4,
42

9
2.

40
%

38



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

As
se

ts
 a

nd
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
C

om
pa

ris
on

10

A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

Li
ab

ili
tie

s
A

s 
of

 J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

18
A

s 
of

 J
ul

y 
1,

 
20

19
%

 C
ha

ng
e

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(A

L)
$ 

99
3,

32
2,

34
0 

$ 
1,

04
3,

82
0,

21
1 

5.
08

%
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
(A

VA
)

$ 
94

3,
07

0,
63

5 
$ 

   
96

8,
14

2,
43

4 
2.

66
%

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(U
AL

)
$ 

  5
0,

25
1,

70
5 

$ 
   

  7
5,

67
7,

77
7 

50
.6

0%
Fu

nd
ed

 R
at

io
 (A

VA
 / 

AL
)

94
.9

4%
92

.7
5%

-2
.1

9%
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

(M
VA

)
$ 

94
5,

54
3,

38
2 

$ 
   

98
1,

26
1,

56
9 

3.
78

%
Fu

nd
ed

 R
at

io
 (M

VA
 / 

AL
)

95
.1

9%
94

.0
1%

-1
.1

8%

•
Th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

re
tu

rn
ed

 6
.7

7%
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

(A
VA

) r
et

ur
ne

d 
5.

63
%

 fr
om

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
to

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9,

 b
ot

h 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 o
f 6

.9
0%

. 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

os
s 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

as
 $

11
.7

 m
illi

on
.

•
Th

er
e 

w
as

 a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l  
lia

bi
lit

y 
lo

ss
 o

f $
9.

1 
m

illi
on

.
•

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 fr

om
 6

.9
0%

 to
 6

.8
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

by
 $

5.
9 

m
illi

on
.

39



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s

11

So
ur

ce
(G

ai
n)

 / 
Lo

ss
Li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

as
 o

f J
ul

y 
1,

 2
01

8
$ 

99
3,

32
2,

34
0 

C
ha

ng
e 

du
e 

to
:

R
ec

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r L
ia

bi
lit

y
1,

97
3,

24
1

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l (
G

ai
n)

 / 
Lo

ss
9,

13
8,

46
4 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
es

5,
89

9,
35

7
Be

ne
fit

s 
Ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
an

d 
O

th
er

 S
ou

rc
es

33
,4

86
,8

09
To

ta
l L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
cr

ea
se

 / 
(D

ec
re

as
e)

50
,4

97
,8

71
 

Li
ab

ilit
ie

s 
as

 o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

01
9

$ 
   

   
 1

,0
43

,8
20

,2
11

So
ur

ce
(G

ai
n)

 / 
Lo

ss
%

 o
f L

ia
bi

lit
y

N
ew

 m
em

be
rs

 e
nt

er
in

g 
Sy

st
em

$ 
36

1,
75

3 
0.

0%
Sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
2,

58
5,

47
2 

0.
3%

Ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

r d
ec

re
m

en
ts

5,
03

4,
88

7 
0.

5%
In

ac
tiv

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y

13
6,

28
8 

0.
0%

R
et

ire
e 

C
O

LA
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d

4,
57

5,
86

0 
0.

5%
Be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 le

ss
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d

(4
,4

82
,8

21
)

-0
.5

%
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

ch
an

ge
s

92
7,

02
5 

0.
1%

To
ta

l A
ct

ua
ria

lL
ia

bi
lit

y 
(G

ai
n)

/ L
os

s
$ 

   
   

 9
,1

38
,4

64
 

0.
9%

40



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

Li
ab

ilit
y 

By
 P

la
n

27
4 16

 

1,
14

2 

1,
38

7 

20
5 

91
 

2 
10

9 

77
4 

3 

N
um

be
r o

f M
em

be
rs

 b
y 

Pl
an

Pl
an

 A
 N

on
 - 

Po
lic

e 
(In

ac
tiv

e)
Pl

an
 A

 - 
Po

lic
e 

(In
ac

tiv
e)

Pl
an

 B
  (

Ac
tiv

e)
Pl

an
 B

  (
In

ac
tiv

e)
Pl

an
 C

 (A
ct

iv
e)

Pl
an

 C
 (I

na
ct

iv
e)

Pl
an

 D
 (A

ct
iv

e)
Pl

an
 D

 (I
na

ct
iv

e)
Pl

an
 E

 (A
ct

iv
e)

Pl
an

 E
 (I

na
ct

iv
e)

12

12
.3

1%

0.
36

%

27
.6

0%

37
.5

5%
6.

35
%

6.
81

%
0.

17
%

7.
05

%

1.
77

%
0.

03
%

A
ct

ua
ria

l L
ia

bi
lit

y 
by

 P
la

n
Pl

an
 A

 N
on

 - 
Po

lic
e 

(In
ac

tiv
e)

Pl
an

 A
 - 

Po
lic

e 
(In

ac
tiv

e)
Pl

an
 B

  (
Ac

tiv
e)

Pl
an

 B
  (

In
ac

tiv
e)

Pl
an

 C
 (A

ct
iv

e)
Pl

an
 C

 (I
na

ct
iv

e)
Pl

an
 D

 (A
ct

iv
e)

Pl
an

 D
 (I

na
ct

iv
e)

Pl
an

 E
 (A

ct
iv

e)
Pl

an
 E

 (I
na

ct
iv

e)

Ex
cl

ud
es

 T
er

m
in

at
ed

 N
on

-V
es

te
d

41



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

by
 P

la
n

13

N
on

-P
ol

ic
e

Po
lic

e
Pl

an
 A

Pl
an

 A
Pl

an
 B

Pl
an

 C
Pl

an
 D

Pl
an

 E
To

ta
l

A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
r P

ay
ro

ll
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

92
,0

37
,3

79
$ 

17
,1

62
,0

05
$ 

20
5,

37
6

$ 
   

50
,8

16
,3

21
$ 

16
0,

22
1,

08
1

$ 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

ts
G

ro
ss

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
45

4,
45

9
$ 

   
3,

35
2,

12
2

$ 
   

33
,1

75
$ 

   
   

5,
51

6,
41

0
$ 

   
18

,3
56

,1
66

$ 
   

E
st

im
at

ed
 E

xp
en

se
s

25
6,

51
1

7,
58

0
1,

35
9,

96
5

27
4,

45
3

15
0,

50
3

38
,6

29
2,

08
7,

64
1

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
du

e 
to

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
70

3,
52

4
   

   
1,

45
9,

76
0

   
   

21
,8

95
   

   
   

2,
07

8,
95

5
   

   
7,

26
4,

13
4

   
   

  
N

et
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t
25

6,
51

1
$ 

   
  

7,
58

0
$ 

   
   

7,
11

0,
90

0
$ 

   
2,

16
6,

81
5

$ 
   

16
1,

78
3

$ 
   

3,
47

6,
08

4
$ 

   
13

,1
79

,6
73

$ 
   

--A
s 

a 
%

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
7.

73
%

12
.6

3%
78

.7
7%

6.
84

%
8.

23
%

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
5,

92
4,

90
4

$ 
   

1,
36

2,
72

8
$ 

   
36

,0
51

$ 
   

   
37

9,
13

9
$ 

   
   

7,
70

2,
82

2
$ 

   
  

--A
s 

a 
%

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
6.

44
%

7.
94

%
17

.5
5%

0.
75

%
4.

81
%

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f 
Ye

ar
25

6,
51

1
$ 

   
  

7,
58

0
$ 

   
   

13
,0

35
,8

04
$ 

3,
52

9,
54

3
$ 

   
19

7,
83

4
$ 

   
3,

85
5,

22
3

$ 
   

20
,8

82
,4

95
$ 

   
--A

s 
a 

%
 o

f P
ay

ro
ll

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

14
.1

6%
20

.5
7%

96
.3

3%
7.

59
%

13
.0

3%

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r

27
4,

08
2

$ 
   

  
8,

09
9

$ 
   

   
13

,9
28

,7
57

$ 
3,

77
1,

31
7

$ 
   

21
1,

38
6

$ 
   

4,
11

9,
30

6
$ 

   
22

,3
12

,9
47

$ 
   

--A
s 

a 
%

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
15

.1
3%

21
.9

7%
10

2.
93

%
8.

11
%

13
.9

3%

42



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n

14

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fo

r
FY

E 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
1

20
19

 P
ay

ro
ll

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 %
 o

f P
ay

ro
ll

N
on

-P
ol

ic
e

$ 
18

,3
22

,1
45

 
$ 

14
2,

85
3,

70
0 

12
.8

3%

Pa
rk

 P
ol

ic
e

3,
99

0,
80

2
17

,3
67

,3
81

22
.9

8%
To

ta
l

$ 
   

  2
2,

31
2,

94
7 

$ 
  1

60
,2

21
,0

81
13

.9
3%

43



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

Pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 –

Ba
se

lin
e

15

PY
E

B
as

el
in

e
Am

or
t T

yp
e

R
ol

lin
g

20
20

6.
85

%
Hi

st
or

ic
al

Am
or

t P
er

io
d

15
20

21
6.

85
%

19
37

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
0.

0%
20

22
6.

85
%

20
23

6.
85

%
 

20
24

6.
85

%

20
25

6.
85

%

20
26

6.
85

%

20
27

6.
85

%

20
28

6.
85

%

20
29

6.
85

%

20
30

6.
85

%

20
31

6.
85

%

20
32

6.
85

%

20
33

6.
85

%

20
34

6.
85

%

20
35

6.
85

%

20
36

6.
85

%

20
37

6.
85

%

20
38

6.
85

%

20
39

6.
85

%

Av
g

6.
85

%

 

93
%

96
%

95
%

95
%

96
%

96
%

97
%

97
%

97
%

98
%

98
%

98
%

98
%

98
%

99
%

99
%

99
%

99
%

99
%

99
%

10
0%

$0
.0

$0
.5

$1
.0

$1
.5

$2
.0

20
19

20
21

20
23

20
25

20
27

20
29

20
31

20
33

20
35

20
37

20
39

Ju
ly

 1
,

A
ct

ua
ria

l L
ia

bi
lit

y
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
et

s
M

ar
ke

t A
ss

et
s

Dollar

$7
$7

$8
$8

$8
$8

$8
$9

$9
$9

$9
$1

0
$1

0
$1

0
$1

0
$1

1
$1

1
$1

1
$1

1
$1

2
$1

2

$2
2

$1
9

$2
1

$2
1

$2
1

$2
1

$2
1

$2
1

$2
1

$2
2

$2
2

$2
2

$2
2

$2
2

$2
3

$2
3

$2
3

$2
3

$2
4

$2
4

$2
5

$0$1
0

$2
0

$3
0

$4
0

$5
0

$6
0

20
21

20
23

20
25

20
27

20
29

20
31

20
33

20
35

20
37

20
39

20
41

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
To

ta
l N

or
m

al
 C

os
t

AL+Assets

44



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

as
h 

Fl
ow

s

16

A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

•
Fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

ns
 o

f 6
.8

5%
•

To
ta

l p
ay

ro
ll 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
2.

50
%

•
N

o 
lia

bi
lit

y 
ga

in
s 

or
 lo

ss
es

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

To
ta

l
Pr

io
r

Em
pl

oy
er

En
di

ng
No

rm
al

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n

Es
tim

at
ed

In
te

re
st

 to
Em

pl
oy

er
Ye

ar
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
Ju

ne
 3

0,
Co

st
of

 U
AL

Ex
pe

ns
es

En
d 

of
 Y

ea
r

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

Pa
yr

ol
l

as
 %

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll
20

21
11

.0
9

$ 
   

  
7.

70
$ 

   
   

   
 

2.
09

$ 
   

   
 

1.
43

$ 
   

   
  

22
.3

1
$ 

   
   

   
16

0.
22

$ 
   

   
 

13
.9

3%
20

22
11

.4
1

4.
43

2.
15

1.
23

19
.2

2
16

4.
23

11
.7

0%
20

23
11

.7
3

5.
48

2.
22

1.
33

20
.7

6
16

8.
33

12
.3

3%
20

24
12

.0
6

5.
26

2.
28

1.
34

20
.9

5
17

2.
54

12
.1

4%
20

25
12

.4
0

4.
88

2.
35

1.
34

20
.9

7
17

6.
85

11
.8

6%
20

26
12

.7
5

4.
53

2.
41

1.
35

21
.0

4
18

1.
28

11
.6

1%
20

27
13

.1
0

4.
20

2.
47

1.
36

21
.1

4
18

5.
81

11
.3

8%
20

28
13

.4
7

3.
89

2.
54

1.
36

21
.2

5
19

0.
45

11
.1

6%
20

29
13

.8
4

3.
58

2.
60

1.
37

21
.3

9
19

5.
21

10
.9

6%
20

30
14

.2
2

3.
29

2.
66

1.
38

21
.5

4
20

0.
09

10
.7

7%
20

31
14

.6
0

3.
01

2.
72

1.
39

21
.7

2
20

5.
10

10
.5

9%

10
-Y

ea
r P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

os
ts

 (d
ol

la
rs

 in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

45



N
ov

em
be

r 2
0,

 2
01

9

R
eq

ui
re

d 
D

is
cl

os
ur

es
Th

e
pu

rp
os

e
of

th
is

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n

is
to

pr
es

en
tt

he
ac

tu
ar

ia
lv

al
ua

tio
n

re
su

lts
fo

r
th

e
M

ar
yl

an
d-

N
at

io
na

lC
ap

ita
l

Pa
rk

an
d

Pl
an

ni
ng

C
om

m
is

si
on

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
R

et
ire

m
en

tS
ys

te
m

(S
ys

te
m

).
Th

is
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n
is

fo
rt

he
us

e
of

th
e

Bo
ar

d,
Sy

st
em

st
af

f,
an

d
th

e
C

om
m

is
si

on
.

In
pr

ep
ar

in
g

ou
r

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n,

w
e

re
lie

d
on

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

so
m

e
or

al
an

d
so

m
e

w
rit

te
n,

su
pp

lie
d

by
th

e
Sy

st
em

.
Th

is
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
in

cl
ud

es
,b

ut
is

no
tl

im
ite

d
to

,t
he

pl
an

pr
ov

is
io

ns
,e

m
pl

oy
ee

da
ta

,a
nd

fin
an

ci
al

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

W
e

pe
rfo

rm
ed

an
in

fo
rm

al
ex

am
in

at
io

n
of

th
e

ob
vi

ou
s

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
of

th
e

da
ta

fo
rr

ea
so

na
bl

en
es

s
an

d
co

ns
is

te
nc

y
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

ith
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lS

ta
nd

ar
d

of
Pr

ac
tic

e
N

o.
23

.

Th
e

ac
tu

ar
ia

la
ss

um
pt

io
ns

an
d

m
et

ho
ds

ar
e

ou
tli

ne
d

in
th

e
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lV

al
ua

tio
n

R
ep

or
ta

s
of

Ju
ly

1,
20

19
.T

he
ce

ns
us

da
ta

pr
ov

id
ed

to
us

by
th

e
Sy

st
em

w
as

as
of

Ju
ly

1,
20

19
.

Th
e

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

re
fle

ct
ou

ru
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
of

th
e

lik
el

y
fu

tu
re

ex
pe

rie
nc

e
of

th
e

Sy
st

em
,a

nd
th

e
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
as

a
w

ho
le

re
pr

es
en

to
ur

be
st

es
tim

at
e

fo
rt

he
fu

tu
re

ex
pe

rie
nc

e
of

th
e

Sy
st

em
.T

he
re

su
lts

of
th

is
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n
ar

e
de

pe
nd

en
t

up
on

fu
tu

re
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

co
nf

or
m

in
g

to
th

es
e

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

.
To

th
e

ex
te

nt
th

at
fu

tu
re

ex
pe

rie
nc

e
de

vi
at

es
fro

m
th

e
ac

tu
ar

ia
la

ss
um

pt
io

ns
,t

he
tru

e
co

st
of

th
e

Sy
st

em
co

ul
d

va
ry

fro
m

ou
rr

es
ul

ts
.

Th
is

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n

an
d

its
co

nt
en

ts
ha

ve
be

en
pr

ep
ar

ed
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
w

ith
ge

ne
ra

lly
re

co
gn

iz
ed

an
d

ac
ce

pt
ed

ac
tu

ar
ia

l
pr

in
ci

pl
es

an
d

ou
r

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g
of

th
e

C
od

e
of

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

C
on

du
ct

an
d

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l

St
an

da
rd

s
of

Pr
ac

tic
e

se
to

ut
by

th
e

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lS
ta

nd
ar

ds
Bo

ar
d

as
w

el
la

s
ot

he
ra

pp
lic

ab
le

la
w

s
an

d
re

gu
la

tio
ns

.
Fu

rth
er

m
or

e,
as

cr
ed

en
tia

le
d

ac
tu

ar
ie

s,
w

e
m

ee
t

th
e

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n
St

an
da

rd
s

of
th

e
Am

er
ic

an
Ac

ad
em

y
of

Ac
tu

ar
ie

s
to

re
nd

er
th

e
op

in
io

n
co

nt
ai

ne
d

in
th

is
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.
Th

is
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n
do

es
no

t
ad

dr
es

s
an

y
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

lo
rl

eg
al

is
su

es
.W

e
ar

e
no

ta
tto

rn
ey

s,
an

d
ou

rf
irm

do
es

no
tp

ro
vi

de
an

y
le

ga
ls

er
vi

ce
s

or
ad

vi
ce

.

Th
is

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

ex
cl

us
iv

el
y

fo
r

th
e

M
ar

yl
an

d-
N

at
io

na
lC

ap
ita

lP
ar

k
an

d
Pl

an
ni

ng
C

om
m

is
si

on
Em

pl
oy

ee
’s

R
et

ire
m

en
t

Sy
st

em
fo

r
th

e
pu

rp
os

e
de

sc
rib

ed
he

re
in

.
O

th
er

us
er

s
of

th
is

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n

ar
e

no
t

in
te

nd
ed

us
er

s
as

de
fin

ed
in

th
e

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lS
ta

nd
ar

ds
of

Pr
ac

tic
e,

an
d

C
he

iro
n

as
su

m
es

no
du

ty
or

lia
bi

lit
y

to
an

y
ot

he
ru

se
r.

17

46



 T
HE

 M
AR

YL
AN

D-
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 C
AP

IT
AL

 P
AR

K 
AN

D 
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 E
M

PL
O

YE
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

AN
CE

 E
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

S 
N

O
T 

CO
M

PL
ET

ED
 B

Y 
DU

E 
DA

TE
BY

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AS
 O

F 
O

CT
O

BE
R 

20
19

31
 - 

60
 D

AY
S

 6
1 

- 9
0 

 D
AY

S
91

 +
 D

AY
S

   
   

   
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
LS

Se
p-

19
O

ct
-1

9
Se

p-
19

O
ct

-1
9

Se
p-

19
O

ct
-1

9
Se

p-
19

O
ct

-1
9

CH
AI

RM
AN

, M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

CH
AR

IM
AN

, P
RI

N
CE

 G
EO

RG
E'

S 
CO

U
N

TY
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

CI
O

2
0

0
1

0
0

2
1

O
FF

IC
E 

O
F 

IN
SP

EC
TO

R 
GE

N
ER

AL
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E/

CH
AI

RS
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

DE
PT

. O
F 

HU
M

AN
 R

ES
O

U
RC

ES
 &

 M
GT

.
1

1
0

0
0

0
1

1

LE
GA

L 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T
0

3
0

0
0

0
0

3

FI
N

AN
CE

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

2
1

0
0

0
0

2
1

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
3

4
1

1
1

0
5

6

PR
IN

CE
 G

EO
RG

E'
S 

PA
RK

S 
&

 R
EC

RE
AT

IO
N

26
12

5
0

0
0

31
13

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
AR

KS
16

12
2

1
2

0
20

14

M
O

N
TG

O
M

ER
Y 

CO
U

N
TY

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

7
5

0
0

1
0

9
6

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
TO

TA
L 

BY
 D

AY
S 

LA
TE

**
57

38
8

3
4

0

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
-W

ID
E 

TO
TA

L
70

45

**
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

TS
 H

AV
E 

BE
EN

 N
O

TI
FI

ED
 O

F 
LA

TE
 E

VA
LU

AT
IO

N
S.

Item 6a

47



This page intentionally left blank.  

48



The Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission 
Department of finance - Purchasing Division 

6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 300 • Riverdale, Maryland 20737 • 301-454-1600 Fax: 301-454-1606 

November 5, 2019 

TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Commissioners 

Anju A. Bennett, Acting Executive Director <} 
�(:A__�

Joseph C. Zimmerman, Secretary/Treasur�.) · 

MFD Purchasing Statistics- Fourth Quarter FY19 

The Commission's procurement policy (Practice 4-10, Purchasing) includes an anti
discrimination component which assures that fair and equitable vendor opportunities are made 
available to minority, female or disabled owned firms (MFDs). This program is administered 
jointly by the Office of the Executive Director and the Purchasing Division and includes a price 
preference program and an MFD subcontracting component based on the Commission 
procurement practices and the available MFD vendors in the marketplace. The price preference 
program has been suspended until a MFD study is conducted to provide evidence that the price 
preference is/is not needed. This report is provided for your information and may be found on 
the Commission's intranet. 

Some of the observations of this FY19 report include: 

• Attachment A indicates that through the Fourth Quarter of FY19, the Commission
procured approximately $112.0 million in goods, professional services, construction and
miscellaneous services. Approximately 18. 7% or $20.9 million was spent with minority,
female and disabled (MFD) owned firms.

• Attachment B indicates that in the Fourth Quarter MFD utilization was 14.9%.

• Attachment C represents the MFD participation by type of procurement. The MFD
participation for construction through the Fourth Quarter of FY19 was 24.5%.
Attachment C also indicates that the largest consumers of goods and services in the
Commission are the Prince George's County Department of Parks and Recreation and
the Montgomery County Department of Parks. These Departments significantly impact
the Commission's utilization of MFD firms. The MFD cumulative utilization numbers for
these departments through the Fourth Quarter are 20.1% and 11.0%, respectively.

• Attachment D presents the FY19 activity for the Purchase Card program totaling
approximately $15.5 million of which 1.2% was spent with minority, female and disabled
(MFD) firms. The amount of procurement card activity represents approximately 13.8%
of the Commission's total procurement dollars. One reason for lower MFD participation
on the purchase card is that the cards are used with national retail corporations when a

Item 6b

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



This page intentionally left blank.   

84



 

MEMO 

 
TO:  Commissioners 

VIA:  Joseph Zimmerman, Secretary-Treasurer 
FROM: Tanya Hankton, Investment & Treasury Operations Manager 
DATE: 11/10/2019 

SUBJECT: Investment Report – September 2019 

 

The Commission’s pooled cash investment portfolio totaled $429.4 million as of September 30, 
2019, with a 7.8% increase from August 31, 2019.  Details are as follows: 

                                    

The composition of the pooled cash portfolio as of September 30, 2019 is summarized below: 
 
                                                                                                                                                           

                       

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TREASURY OPERATIONS, FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 302, Riverdale, MD 20737 
Telephone (301) 454-1592 / Fax (301) 454-1637 

85



 

               

  
 
The pooled cash portfolio complied with all policy limits with regards to product types and proportions 
throughout the month.     
 
          

                 
              
           
 
 
 

Instrument
Policy
Limit Actual Par Value

Wtd. Avg.
Return (B/E)

Money Funds * 25% 23.0% 98,445,651$       2.01%
Freddie Mac 20% 20.8% 89,000,000         2.00%
Federal Home Loan Banks   20% 17.5% 75,000,000         1.73%
Farmer Mac 20% 18.0% 77,000,000         2.34%
Treasury Notes 100% 16.1% 70,000,000         2.06%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 20% 4.7% 20,000,000         2.62%
Commercial Paper 10% 0.0% -                     0.00%
Fannie Mae 20% 0.0% -                     0.00%
Certificates of Deposit 50% 0.0% -                     0.00%
Bankers Acceptances 50% 0.0% -                     0.00%
Repurchase Agreements 60% 0.0% -                     0.00%

100% 429,445,651$  2.08%

*As of 9/30/2019

Current Investment Portfolio - September 2019

86



 

In addition to the product limits, portfolio purchases also adhered to the 30% limit per dealer. Dealer 
participation is shown below: 

       

 
 
The market values of unspent debt balances (invested by T. Rowe Price) were as follows: 
 

 
      

                     

                    
     
The Commission had no debt service payments during the month. 
 
  
 

Prince George's County (PGC-2018A) 20,673,492$        
Montgomery County (MC-2018A) 8,153,862            

28,827,354$    

Market Value - September 2019

87



 

 
 
 
Details by issue of debt outstanding as of September 30, 2019 appear below: 

 

  

Initial Par
Amount 

Outstanding
% 

Outstanding
Issue 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Bi-County

Total Bi-County  $                -    $                -   0%
Prince George’s County

NN-2 (Refunded Z-2 )      14,080,000        2,690,000 19% Mar-10 May-21
PGC-2012A (Refunded P-2, M-2, EE-2 )      11,420,000        4,340,000 38% Jun-12 Jan-24

PGC-2014A      26,565,000      21,385,000 81% May-14 Jan-34
PGC-2015A (Refunded JJ-2 )*      24,820,000      21,915,000 88% Oct-15 Jan-36

PGC-2017A      33,000,000      29,700,000 90% Jul-17 Jan-37
PGC-2018A      31,000,000      31,000,000 100% Nov-19 Nov-38

Total Prince George’s County  $ 140,885,000  $ 111,030,000 79%
Montgomery County

LL-2        8,405,000           810,000 10% May-09 Nov-20
MM-2        5,250,000           315,000 6% May-09 Nov-19

MC-2012A (Refunded CC-2, FF-2 )      12,505,000        8,265,000 66% Apr-12 Dec-32
MC-2012B        3,000,000        2,245,000 75% Apr-12 Dec-32
MC-2014A      14,000,000      11,425,000 82% Jun-14 Jun-34
MC-2016A      12,000,000      10,680,000 89% Apr-16 Nov-35

MC-2016B (Refunded FF-2,II-2,MM-2 )        6,120,000        5,650,000 92% Apr-16 Nov-28
MC-2016C (Refunded FF-2 ALA of 2004 )        1,075,000           750,000 70% Apr-16 Nov-24

MC-2017A        8,000,000        7,200,000 90% Apr-17 Nov-36
MC-2018A      12,000,000      12,000,000 100% Oct-18 Nov-38
MC-2018B        3,000,000        3,000,000 100% Oct-18 Nov-23

Total Montgomery County  $  85,355,000  $  62,340,000 73%
Total  $ 226,240,000  $ 173,370,000 77%

Debt Balances - September 2019

88



 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A     
THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE TO INVESTMENT POLICY Approved March 21, 2012 
FISCAL YEAR 2020 – September 30, 2019 

        

OBJECTIVES     
Met 

Objective 
Within 
Limits Comments 

Protection of principal   Yes     
  Limiting types and amounts of securities Limit   Yes 

All securities purchases were 
within the limits established by 
the Investment Policy at the time 
of purchase of the investments. 
This monthly report is prepared 
for the Secretary-Treasurer to 
demonstrate compliance with 
investment policy objectives and 
limitations. 

    US Government 100%     
    US Federal Agencies - combined 60%     
    US Federal Agencies - each 20%     
    Repurchase Agreements 60%     

    CD’s and Time Deposits 50%     
    Commercial Paper 10%      
    Money Market Mutual Funds  25%      
    MD Local Gov’t Investment Pool 25%      
    Investing Bond Proceeds:        
      State and local agency securities 100%      
      Money Market Mutual Funds 10%      
             
            Bond Proceeds:     Yes T. Rowe Price managed all funds 

within limits       Highly-rated state / local agency securities     
      Highly-rated money market mutual funds       
        (Max. 10% in lower-rated funds)         
             
  Pre-qualify financial institutions, broker/dealers, 

intermediaries and advisers 
  Yes All firms must meet defined 

capital levels and be approved 
by the Secretary-Treasurer       

  Ensure competition among participants 30% 
  Yes No dealer share exceeded 30% 

  Competitive Bidding     Yes 
All purchases awarded 
competitively. 

             
  Diversification of Maturities         
   Majority of investments shall be a maximum 

maturity of one (1) year.  A portion may be as long 
as two years. 

  Yes All maturities within limits 
         
        
             
  Require third-party collateral and 

safekeeping, and delivery-versus-payment 
settlement 

    
Yes 

  

M&T Investments serves as 
custodian, monitoring 
compliance daily       

             

Maintain sufficient liquidity   Yes   
Sufficient funds available for all 
cash requirements during period 

            
             
Attain a market rate of return   No   Less than market by 30 basis points 
  

The pro-rated rates of return for T-bills and the portfolio 
were 1.88% and 1.58%, respectively. 

     
        
    

89



This page intentionally left blank.   

90



November 8, 2019 

Office of the General Counsel 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

Reply To 

Adrian R. Gardner 
General Counsel 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 200 
Riverdale, Maryland 20737 
(301) 454-1670 ● (301) 454-1674 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

FROM: Adrian R. Gardner 
General Counsel 

RE: Litigation Report for October 2019 – FY 2020 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 
Wednesday, November 20, 2019.  As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance 
if you would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported.   

Table of Contents – October 2019 – FY 2020 Report 

Composition of Pending Litigation ........................................................................... Page 01 
Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) ................................................................... Page 01 
Litigation Activity Summary .................................................................................... Page 02 
Index of New YTD Cases (FY20)  ........................................................................... Page 03 
Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY20)  .................................................................... Page 03 
Disposition of FY20 Closed Cases Sorted by Department  ...................................... Page 04 
Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction ....................................................... Page 06 
Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction ...................................................... Page 07 

Item 6c

91



This page intentionally left blank.   

92



1 | P a g e  
 

 October 2019 
 Composition of Pending Litigation 

 (Sorted By Subject Matter and Forum) 
 State Trial 

Court 
Maryland 

COSA 
Maryland 
Court of 
Appeals 

Federal 
Trial 
Court 

Federal 
Appeals 

Court 

U.S. 
Supreme 

Court 

Subject 
Matter 
Totals 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use 2 2 1    5 

Admin Appeal: 
Other        

Land Use 
Dispute        

Tort Claim 
        

Employment 
Dispute 1   1   2 

Contract 
Dispute 
 

       

Property 
Dispute 
 

       

Civil 
Enforcement        

Workers’ 
Compensation 4 2     6 

Debt Collection        
Bankruptcy        
Miscellaneous 
        

Per Forum 
Totals 
 

7 4 1 1   13 

 

 

LAND USE
39%

EMPLOYMENT 15%

WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION

46%
By Major Case Categories

93



 
 
  
  
 Page 2 of 13 

October 2019 Litigation  
Activity Summary 

 
 COUNT FOR MONTH COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

Pending 
In Sept.  

2019 
New 

Cases 
Resolved 

Cases 
Pending 

Prior 
F/Y 

New 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Resolved 
Cases 

F/YTD** 

Pending 
Current 
Month 

Admin Appeal: 
Land Use (AALU) 5   6 3 4 5 

Admin Appeal: 
Other (AAO)        

Land Use 
Disputes (LD)        

 
Tort Claims (T)    1  1  

Employment 
Disputes (ED) 1 1   2  2 

Contract Disputes 
(CD)        

Property Disputes 
(PD)        

Civil Enforcement 
(CE)        

Workers’ 
Compensation 

(WC) 
6   5 3 3 6 

Debt Collection 
(D)        

 
Bankruptcy (B)        

 
Miscellaneous (M) 1  1 2  2  

 
Totals 13 1 1 14 8 10 13 

 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 

94



 
  
  
 Page 3 of 13 
 

 
 

INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 
(7/1/2019 TO 6/30/20) 

 
 

A.  New Trial Court Cases.    Unit  Subject Matter  Month  
     Milbourne v. Commission    PG  WC   July 19 
     Commission v. Batson                                      PG  WC                                 July 19  
     Commission v. Sommer    PG  WC   Aug 19 
     McCourt v. Commission    PG  ED   Aug 19 
     Neighbors for an Improved Kensington,  MC  AALU   Aug 19 

 et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
     King v. Commission     PG  WC   Sept 19 
     Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board MC  AALU   Sept 19 
     Evans v. Commission    MC  ED   Sept 19 
 
 
      
 
B.  New Appellate Court Cases.   Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
      Pletsch, et al v. Commission    MC  AALU 
 
 
 
 
C.  New Supreme Court of the U.S. Cases.  Unit  Subject Matter  Month 
 

 
 

INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 
(7/1/2019 TO 6/30/20) 

  
A.  Trial Court Cases Resolved.                        Unit                  Subject Matter   Month 
     Commission v. Ferrante                                  PG  WC   July 19 
     Commission v. Ferrante                                  PG  WC   July 19 
     Bradley Boulevard Citizens Association Inc. 
         v. Montgomery County Planning Board   MC  AALU   July 19 
     Critical Area Commission v. MNCPPC           PG                     AALU              Aug 19 
 
 
B.  Appellate Court Cases Resolved.                Unit Subject Matter   Month 
 The Town of Forest Heights v. Commission    PG Misc.   June 19  
 Pletsch, et al. v. Commission                           PG AALU   July 19 
 
 

95



 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f  1
3 

 

D
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 F

Y2
0 

C
lo

se
d 

C
as

es
 S

or
te

d 
by

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

C
LI

EN
T 

PR
IN

C
IP

A
L 

C
A

U
SE

 O
F 

A
C

TI
O

N
 IN

 D
IS

PU
TE

 
D

IS
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 &

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

la
nn

in
g 

 
 

 

Br
ad

le
y 

B
ou

le
va

rd
 C

iti
ze

ns
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 In

c.
 v

. 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
P

la
nn

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 

Ap
pe

al
 o

f P
la

nn
in

g 
B

oa
rd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f W

M
AL

 S
ite

 
Pl

an
 8

20
17

01
70

. 
07

/1
7/

19
 –

 J
oi

nt
 M

ot
io

n 
to

 
D

is
m

is
s 

gr
an

te
d.

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ar
ks

  
 

 
 

 
 

M
on

tg
om

er
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pa
rk

 P
ol

ic
e 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

 
 

Fe
rr

an
te

 v
. C

om
m

is
si

on
 (t

w
o 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
as

es
) 

Ap
pe

al
 f

ro
m

 W
C

C
 O

rd
er

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 t

o 
pa

y 
in

de
m

ni
ty

 b
en

ef
its

 c
or

re
sp

on
di

ng
 t

o 
m

ed
ic

al
 

tre
at

m
en

t. 

07
/2

5/
19

- C
ou

rt 
af

fir
m

ed
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 o

f t
he

 o
rd

er
s 

da
te

d 
Ap

ril
 1

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
9,

 
20

18
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

rth
e 

W
or

ke
rs

’ 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
 

 

96



 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f  1
3 

 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
 

Pl
et

sc
h,

 e
t a

l. 
v.

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Tw

o 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

pp
ea

ls
 fi

le
d.

 C
iti

ze
ns

 fi
le

d 
an

 a
pp

ea
l 

of
 

or
de

r 
af

fir
m

in
g 

th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
 

an
d 

re
so

lu
tio

n.
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
er

 f
ile

d 
an

 a
pp

ea
l 

of
 t

he
 

de
ni

al
 o

f t
he

 m
ot

io
n 

to
 d

is
m

is
s 

fo
r 

la
ck

 o
f s

ta
nd

in
g.

 
Th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

id
 n

ot
 j

oi
n 

in
 t

he
 a

pp
ea

l 
of

 t
he

 
de

ni
al

 o
f t

he
 m

ot
io

n 
to

 d
is

m
is

s.
 

07
/2

2/
19

 –
 C

ou
rt 

va
ca

te
d 

th
e 

ju
dg

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

irc
ui

t C
ou

rt 
an

d 
re

m
an

de
d 

w
ith

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 
di

sm
is

s 
th

e 
Pe

tit
io

n 
fo

r J
ud

ic
ia

l 
R

ev
ie

w
. 

C
rit

ic
al

 A
re

a 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 v

. M
N

C
PP

C
 

Pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r 

Ju
di

ci
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 P

rin
ce

 
G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
’s

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

th
e 

In
di

an
 Q

ue
en

 O
ve

rlo
ok

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n 

 
C

P-
16

00
2.

 

08
/1

9/
19

 - 
 m

at
te

r v
ol

un
ta

ril
y 

di
sm

is
se

d.
 

Pr
in

ce
 G

eo
rg

e’
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

in
ce

 G
eo

rg
e’

s 
Pa

rk
 P

ol
ic

e 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
 

 
 

 
 

97



 
         Page 6 of 13 

INDEX OF CASES 
 
DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ............................................................ 7 
DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..................................................... 7 
Milbourne v.  Commission ............................................................................................................................. 7 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND .............................................................. 7 
Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board ....................................................................................... 7 

Neighbors for an Improved Kensington, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board ............................... 8 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ....................................................... 8 
Commission v. Batson. ................................................................................................................................. 8 

Commission v. Sommer. ............................................................................................................................... 9 

King v. Commission . .................................................................................................................................... 9 

McCourt v. Commission  ............................................................................................................................. 10 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS  ........................................................................................ 10 
Bradley Boulevard Citizens Assn, Inc. v. Montgomery County Planning Board. ........................................ 10 

Gaspard v. Montgomery County Planning Board ………………………………………………………………11 

Green v. Commission ...…………………………………………………………………………………………...11 

Ross v. Commission. .................................................................................................................................. 12 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS .......................................................................................................... 12 
Pletsch, et al. v. Commission ...................................................................................................................... 12 

U.S. DISTRICT  COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND .............................................................. 13  
Evans v. Commission, et al…………………. ……………………………………………………………………13 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT ....................................................................... 13 
SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES......................................................................................... 13 

  

98



 
         Page 7 of 13 

 
DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

 
Milbourne v. Commission 

Case No. 050200086602019 (WC) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Dickerson  
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
Abstract:  Milbourne alleges Commission owes him for amounts withheld from annual leave 

pay out in the amount of $27,721.67 upon leaving employment. 
  
Status:   Complaint filed.   
Docket: 

Complaint filed 
Commission served 
Notice of Intent to Defend filed by Commission 
Commission Demand for Jury trial 
Settlement reached in principle for payment to the Commission 
by Milbourne for overpayment of wages, in light of the 
Commission’s contemplated counter-claim for said 
overpayment of wages. 
 

 
   

 
CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

 
 

Estreicher v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 472672-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Mills 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of Sketch Plan 

320190100 8015 Old Georgetown Road.  
 
Status:    Awaiting Scheduling Order. 
 
Docket: 

09/24/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
10/08/19 Commission’s Response filed 
10/10/19 JLB Realy, LLC’s Response to Petition for Judicial Review filed 

 
  

99



 
         Page 8 of 13 

 
 

Neighbors for an Improved Kensington, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
Case No. 472049-V (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Coleman 
Other Counsel:  Mills 
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval of Knowles 

Manor Site Plan 820190080.  
 
Status:    Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

08/29/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
09/09/19 Commission’s response filed 
10/04/19 Kensington Manor Senior Housing, LLC’s Response to Petition 

for Judicial Review filed. 
 

 
 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 
 

Commission v. Batson 
Case No. CAL19-24204 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Judicial Review of WCC Order regarding surgical authorization for leg causally 

related to accidental injury 
  
Status:    Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

07/26/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
08/08/19 Order of Court Permitting Omission of Record 
08/19/19 Batson’s Notice of Intent to Participate, Jury Demand 
08/22/19 Commission’s Motion to Strike Request for De Novo Review 

and Request for Jury Demand 
09/03/19 Opposition to Motion to Strike filed 
09/06/19 Memo in Support of on the record Judicial Review filed 
09/19/19 Memo in Support of Opposition filed 
10/02/19 Order of Court- Commission’s Motion to Strike Request for De 

Novo Review and Request for Jury Trial denied. Case to 
proceed De Novo before a jury. 

 
 

  

100



 
         Page 9 of 13 

 
Commission v. Sommer 

Case No. CAL 19-28143 (WC) 
 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant and the Commission have filed a Joint Petition for Judicial Review 

appealing the several denials of a proposed settlement agreement by the WCC.  
 
Status:    Joint Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

08/26/19 Joint Petition for Judicial Review filed 
08/29/19 Order of Court Permitting Omission of Record 
10/30/19 Order of Court. Remanding matter back to WCC in line with 

settlement agreement between the parties.  Commission to 
pay, a lump sum payment of $50,000, less an attorney's fee of 
$7,516.15. 

 
 

King v. Commission 
Case No. CAL 19-30096 (WC) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Claimant seeks judicial review of an order from the Workers’ Compensation 

Commission denying authorization for neck surgery. 
  
Status:    In discovery. 
 
Docket: 

09/23/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
09/26/19 Order of Court Permitting Omission of Record 
10/03/19 Response of Commission filed. 
06/30/20 Trial 

 
 
  

101



 
         Page 10 of 13 

McCourt v. Commission  
Case No. CAL 19-27903 (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
Abstract:  Petition for Judicial Review of Merit Board decision on a classification matter 

filed.  
 
Status:    Petition for Judicial Review filed. 
 
Docket: 

08/23/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
09/04/19 Commission notified of filing of Petition 
09/24/19 Response to Petition for Judicial Review 

 
 
 

MARYLAND COURT OF SPECIAL APPEALS 
 

Bradley Boulevard Citizens Assn, Inc. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
September Term 2018, No. 1034 (AALU) 

(Originally filed under 436463-V in Montgomery County) 
 

Lead Counsel:   Sorrento  
Other Counsel:   
 
 
Abstract:   Petitioner appealed Montgomery County Circuit Court June 4, 2018 Order  
   affirming the Planning Board’s approval of WMAL Preliminary Plan 120160290. 
 
Status:    Awaiting decision. 
 
Docket:  

07/03/18 Civil Information Report filed 
10/26/18 Order that Appeal proceed without a prehearing conference or 

ADR 
10/09/19 Oral Argument held. 

 
 

  

102



 
         Page 11 of 13 

Gaspard v. Montgomery County Planning Board 
September Term 2019 Case No. 0579 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:   Mills  
Other Counsel:   
 
 
Abstract:  Appeal of decision affirming Planning Board’s approval of Preliminary Plan 

120160180 Glen Mill – Parcel 833 
 
Status:    Appeal filed.  
 
Docket: 

05/23/19 Appeal filed 
08/21/19 Order Appeal to proceed without a prehearing conference or ADR 
10/17/19 Briefing Notice and Scheduling Order. Oral argument set for June 

2020 session. 
 

 
Green v. Commission 

September Term 2019 Case No.0709 (WC) 
 
Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract: Appeal from Circuit Court’s dismissal of Petition for Judicial Review. Underlying 

decision required Appellant to use Corvel’s mail-in services for her prescription 
needs, effective December 1, 2018. The Commission filed a Motion to Dismiss 
arguing that the Claimant/Plaintiff was not aggrieved by the decision of the WCC 
because there was no change to her medications, only the delivery apparatus, 
and thus she had no standing to appeal. Claimant/Plaintiff appealed. 

 
 
Status:    Appeal filed. 
 
Docket: 

06/13/19 Appeal filed. 
07/23/19 Order Appeal to proceed without a prehearing conference or 

ADR 
10/21/19 Show Cause Order to Green as to why appeal should not be 

dismissed for failure to transmit the record within the time 
required 

10/28/19 Record on Appeal received by Court. 
10/28/19 Scheduling Order issued. 

 
 
  

103



 
         Page 12 of 13 

 
Ross v. Commission 

September Term 2019, No. 280 (WC) 
 

Lead Counsel:  Foster 
Other Counsel:   
 
Abstract:  Defense of appeal from order granting a credit for overpayment of temporary 

total disability from June 26, 2013 to March 23, 2016 
  
Status:   Case settled. 
Docket: 

04/17/19 Petition for Judicial Review filed 
08/27/19 Appeal pending before the Court of Special Appeals on the 

issue of the credit in Commissions’ favor to be dismissed. 
09/10/19 Case settled with regard to the indemnity portion of Ross’ 

workers’ compensation claim. Claim remains open for lifetime 
medical care.  

10/21/19 Line of Dismissal of appeal filed by Appellant Ross. 
10/22/19 Mandate. Appeal dismissed. 

 
 
 

MARYLAND COURT OF APPEALS 
 
 

Pletsch, et al v. Commission 
September Term 2019, No. 0293 (AALU) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Mills  
Other Counsel:  Borden 
 
 
Abstract:  Petition for Writ of Cert filed regarding Court of Special Appeals remand to Circuit 

Court to Dismiss Petition for Judicial Review for lack of standing. 
 
 
Status:   Awaiting court decision on certiorari. 
 
Docket: 

09/25/19 Petition for Writ of Certiorari filed 
 

  

104



 
         Page 13 of 13 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 
 
 

Evans v. Commission, et al. 
8:19-cv-02651 TDC (ED) 

 
Lead Counsel:  Dickerson 
Other Counsel:  Foster 
 
 
Abstract:  Plaintiff, police lieutenant, filed a complaint against the Commission and four 

individual defendants, alleging discrimination, retaliation and assorted negligence 
and constitutional violations. 

 
 
Status:   Complaint filed. 
 
Docket: 

09/11/19 Complaint filed 
10/23/19 Notice of Intent to file Motion for More Definite Statement filed 

by Defendants Commission, McSwain, and Riley 
10/24/19 Notice of Appearance filed by attorney J. Creed on behalf of 

Defendant Murphy 
10/28/2019 Notice of Intent to File a Motion filed by attorney C. Bruce on 

behalf of Defendant Uhrig 
 

 
 
 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT 
 
 

No Pending Cases 
 
 
 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 
 
 

No Pending Cases 

105


	1. Comm Agenda 11-20-19
	2. 10-16-19 Comm Mtg final
	blank spacer page
	4a. ECM - 11-6-19 OPEN - FINAL
	blank spacer page
	4b. September 3 2019 Regular Minutes
	5a1. Resolution 19-20 memo Tanya Upthegrove-Coleman MSB
	blank spacer page
	5a2. Resolutions 19-20
	5a2. Tanya Biography 2019
	5b1. Employer Contribution Memo FY2021
	5b2. Resolution 19-22
	blank spacer page
	5b3. 2019 M-NCPPC ERS Commission Presentation_11.20.19_vs
	Pension Actuarial Valuation �as of July 1, 2019
	Agenda
	The Actuarial Valuation Process 
	Slide Number 4
	Membership Trends
	Slide Number 6
	Assets and Liabilities
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18

	6a. LATE PERF EVAL REPORT.OCT.2019
	Sheet1

	6b. MFD Report
	blank spacer page
	6b2. Q1 Investment Report
	blank spacer page
	6c1. October 2019 Cover Memo
	MEMORANDUM
	Table of Contents – October 2019 – FY 2020 Report


	blank spacer page
	6c2. October  2019 Litigation Report
	Subject Matter Totals
	U.S. Supreme
	Federal
	Federal
	Maryland
	Maryland
	State Trial Court
	Appeals
	Trial
	Court of
	COSA
	Court
	Court
	Court
	Appeals
	Admin Appeal: Land Use
	1
	2
	2
	Admin Appeal: Other
	Land Use Dispute
	Tort Claim
	Employment Dispute
	1
	1
	Contract Dispute
	Property Dispute
	Civil Enforcement
	Workers’ Compensation
	6
	2
	4
	Debt Collection
	Bankruptcy
	Miscellaneous
	Per Forum Totals
	1
	1
	4
	7
	No Pending Cases




